Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

3-8-2018

State v. Bosma Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45354

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

Martin J. Bosma, Jr. appeals from his judgment of conviction for domestic battery-traumatic injury. Mr. Bosma pleaded guilty and the district court imposed a unified sentence of ten years, with six years fixed. Mr. Bosma now appeals, and he asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence.

Statement of the Facts & Course of Proceedings

On February 25, 2017, a Canyon County Sheriff's Deputy responded to a report that Mr. Bosma was threatening to harm his wife and their children. (Presentence Investigation Report (*hereinafter*, PSI), p.2.) Mr. Bosma's wife reported that she and Mr. Bosma had gotten into an argument and that she had hit her that night. (PSI, p.3.) She also reported that on a previous occasion, Mr. Bosma had attempted to strangle her while one of their children was in the room. (PSI, p.3.) Mr. Bosma adamantly denied attempting to strangle his wife. (PSI, p.5.)

Mr. Bosma was charged with attempted strangulation and domestic battery in the presence of children. (R., p.16.) He pleaded guilty to an amended charge of domestic battery-traumatic injury. (R., p.32.) The district court imposed a unified sentence of ten years, with six years fixed. (R., p.58.) Mr. Bosma appealed. (R., p.60.) He asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence.

ISSUE

Did the district court abuse its discretion when it imposed a unified sentence of ten years, with six years fixed, upon Mr. Bosma following his conviction plea of guilty to domestic battery-traumatic injury?

ARGUMENT

The District Court Abused Its Discretion When It Imposed A Unified Sentence Of Ten Years, With Six Years Fixed, Upon Mr. Bosma Following His Plea Of Guilty To Domestic Battery-Traumatic Injury

“It is well-established that “[w]here a sentence is within statutory limits, an appellant has the burden of showing a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the court imposing the sentence.” *State v. Pierce*, 150 Idaho 1, 5 (2010) (quoting *State v. Jackson*, 130 Idaho 293, 294 (1997) (alteration in original)). Here, Mr. Bosma's sentence does not exceed the statutory

maximum. *See* I.C. § 18-903; § 18-918(2). Accordingly, to show that the sentence imposed was unreasonable, Mr. Bosma “must show that the sentence, in light of the governing criteria, is excessive under any reasonable view of the facts.” *State v. Strand*, 137 Idaho 457, 460 (2002).

“‘Reasonableness’ of a sentence implies that a term of confinement should be tailored to the purpose for which the sentence is imposed.” *State v. Adamcik*, 152 Idaho 445, 483 (2012) (quoting *State v. Stevens*, 146 Idaho 139, 148 (2008)).

In examining the reasonableness of a sentence, the Court conducts an independent review of the entire record available to the trial court at sentencing, focusing on the objectives of criminal punishment: (1) protection of society; (2) deterrence of the individual and the public; (3) possibility of rehabilitation; and (4) punishment or retribution for wrongdoing.

Stevens, 146 Idaho at 148. “A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution.” *State v. Delling*, 152 Idaho 122, 132 (2011).

At the sentencing hearing, Mr. Bosma took responsibility for his actions, stating, “I’m fully responsible for the decision – the poor decisions and behaviors – negative behaviors which included my verbal and physical abuse of my wife.” (Tr., p.25, Ls.9-13.) He apologized to his children for hurting their mother in front of them and emphasized that it was “none of their faults. It was all mine. And I’m sorry.” (Tr., p.27, Ls.19-23.)

Further, Mr. Bosma acknowledged that he had a problem with alcohol and had been drinking recently. At the sentencing hearing, he stated, “I convinced myself that I can drink again, that after 12 years underneath my belt that I can actual drink again.” (Tr., p.26, Ls.15-17.) Mr. Bosma admitted that he had drank about a bottle of whiskey on the day in question and had been drinking like that for “the past six months.” (PSI, p.5.) He acknowledged that drinking had caused him problems “in all aspects and relationships in my life” but that “with a good support

network, VA, church, AA, and friends” he could remain sober. (PSI, p.12.) Mr. Bosma could receive support through the VA due to his service in the Army, from which he was honorably discharged in 1999. (PSI, p.10.)

Mr. Bosma was proud of the fact that he had provided financial support for his family. (Tr., p.29, Ls.1-4.) He had been employed in the same job for the past eight years and believed that all of his prior employers would give him positive references. (Tr., p.28, L.21 – p.29, L.7.) The fact that Mr. Bosma had a positive employment history is a reason to believe that he could succeed at probation, which is what his attorney requested. (Tr., p.23, Ls.9-12.)

Considering that Mr. Bosma accepted responsibility for his actions, apologized to his wife and children, acknowledged his problem with alcohol, and had a history of steady employment, Mr. Bosma respectfully submits that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a sentence of ten years, with six years fixed.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Bosma respectfully requests that this Court reduce his sentence as it deems appropriate. Alternatively, he requests that his case be remanded to the district court for a new sentencing hearing.