Uldaho Law

## Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

---

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

---

4-5-2018

### State v. Bosma Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45354

Issue

Has Bosma failed to establish that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a unified sentence of 10 years, with six years fixed, upon his guilty plea to felony domestic battery with traumatic injury?

Bosma Has Failed To Establish That The District Court Abused Its Sentencing Discretion

Bosma pled guilty to felony domestic battery with traumatic injury, and the district court imposed a unified sentence of 10 years, with six years fixed. (R., pp.58-59.) Bosma filed a notice of appeal timely from the judgment of conviction. (R., pp.60-63.)

Bosma asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a unified sentence of 10 years, with six years fixed, in light of his acceptance of responsibility, apology to his wife and children, alcohol abuse issues, and history of steady employment. (Appellant’s brief, pp.2-4.) Bosma has failed to establish an abuse of discretion.

When evaluating whether a sentence is excessive, the court considers the entire length of the sentence under an abuse of discretion standard. State v. McIntosh, 160 Idaho 1, 8, 368 P.3d 621, 628 (2016); State v. Stevens, 146 Idaho 139, 148, 191 P.3d 217, 226 (2008). It is presumed that the fixed portion of the sentence will be the defendant's probable term of confinement. State v. Oliver, 144 Idaho 722, 726, 170 P.3d 687, 391 (2007). Where a sentence is within statutory limits, the appellant bears the burden of demonstrating that it is a clear abuse of discretion. McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (citations omitted). To carry this burden the appellant must show the sentence is excessive under any reasonable view of the facts. Id. A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution. Id. The district court has the discretion to weigh those objectives and give them differing weights when deciding upon the sentence. Id. at 9, 368 P.3d at 629; State v. Moore, 131 Idaho 814, 825, 965 P.2d 174, 185 (1998) (court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that the objectives of punishment, deterrence and protection of society outweighed the need for rehabilitation). “In deference to the trial judge, this Court will not substitute its view of a reasonable sentence where reasonable minds might differ.” McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (quoting Stevens, 146 Idaho at 148-49, 191 P.3d at 226-27). Furthermore, “[a] sentence fixed within the limits prescribed by the statute will ordinarily not be considered an abuse of discretion by the trial court.” Id. (quoting State v. Nice, 103 Idaho 89, 90, 645 P.2d 323, 324 (1982)).

The maximum prison sentence for felony domestic battery is 10 years. I.C. § 18-918(2)(b). The district court imposed a unified sentence of 10 years, with six years fixed, which falls within the statutory guidelines. (R., pp.58-59.) On appeal, Bosma argues that his sentence is excessive because he accepted responsibility, apologized to his wife and children, has alcohol abuse issues, and is employable. (Appellant's brief, pp.2-4.) Contrary to his assertions, however, Bosma has not taken responsibility, and has instead minimized his actions and tried to place blame on the victim. (PSI, pp.5, 8, 15.) Bosma reported after the attack that "she [the victim] wasn't even crying, she had a dry face, but then the cops came and she started crying, with both kids on her sides, if you were there, you would see she should get an Oscar." (PSI, p.5.) Bosma's apology to his family at sentencing does not outweigh his actions against them. The victim reported that, during the attack, Bosma pushed her while she was holding the children and spat on both her and the children. (PSI, p.3.) She also reported that, a week prior to the charged incident, Bosma tried to strangle her in bed while their daughter was in bed with them, and that Bosma told their daughter to "say goodbye to your mom." (PSI, pp.3, 4.) The victim was scratched and bruised on her thigh, and was also bruised on her chest and on the top of her feet. (PSI, p.4.) Bosma admitted that alcohol abuse contributed to both his previous felony conviction for lewd conduct with a minor under 16 and his current offense, but he neither prior incarceration nor treatment opportunities have deterred his from continuing to drink to intoxication. (PSI, pp.6, 12, 70.)

At sentencing, the district court articulated the correct legal standards applicable to its decision and also addressed its reasons for imposing Bosma's sentence. (7/31/17 Tr., p.33, L.24 – p.35, L.17.) The state submits that Bosma has failed to establish an abuse of discretion, for

reasons more fully set forth in the attached excerpt of the sentencing hearing transcript, which the state adopts as its argument on appeal. (Appendix A.)

Conclusion

The state respectfully requests this Court to affirm Bosma's conviction and sentence.